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28. Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding bank guarantees
amounting o KD1,714,187 (2015: KD3,638,119)

29. Dividend distribution

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company propose not to distribute any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). This proposal is subject to the approval of General Assembly of
shareholders.

At the Annual General assembly meeting held on 31 October 2016 the shareholders approved the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

30. Subsequent event

Subject to approval of the shareholders and the regulatory authorities, the board of directors of the
Parent Company decided at their meeting held on 14 August 2017 to decrease the share capital
of the Parent Company to set off the total accumulated losses as at 31 December 2016 and to
distribute an amount of KD2,250,000 to shareholders.

31. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. This reclassification has not affected the consolidated
financial statements, including equity, net loss, cash and cash equivalents for the previous year.
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26.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. To limit
this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind,
and monitors liquidity on a daily basis.

The contfractual maturity of financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows are as follows:

Up to 1-3 3-12 Over
1 month Months months 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD

31 December 2016

Financial liabilities

Due to banks 1,198,111 - - - 1,198,111
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - 4,065,042 - 4,065,042
Borrowings - 703,089 304,500 1,872,558 2,880,147
Provision for end of service indemnity - - - 457,745 457,745

1,198,111 703,089 4,369,542 2,330,303 8,601,045

31 December 2015

Financial liabilities

Due to banks 1,339,155 - - - 1,339,155
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - 5,196,922 - 5,196,922
Borrowings - 382,279 910,432 6,141,875 7,434,586
Provision for end of service indemnity - - - 405,698 405,698

1,339,155 382,279 6,107,354 6,547,573 14,376,361

27. Capital risk management

The Group’s capital risk management objectives are to ensure that it will be able to continue as
a going concern and to provide adequate return to its shareholders through optimisation of the
capital structure.

The capital of the Group consists of total equity. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, buy back shares, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The
management monitors the Group’s return on capital.
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Except for certain available for sale investments and certain tfrade receivables, none of the above
financial assets are past due nor impaired. The Group monitors defaults of counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The Parent
Company’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties.

The credit risk for bank balance is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable
financial institution with high credit quality.

26.3 Concentration of financial assets

The distribution of financial assets and financial liabilities by geographic region for 2016 and 2015 is

as follows:
. Middle East
Kuwait and Asia USA Total
KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2016

Cash and bank balances 3,526,738 - - 3,526,738
Term deposits 994,030 - - 994,030
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,253,355 - - 4,253,355
Available for sale investments - 7,603,255 1,192,425 8,795,680

8,774,123 7,603,255 1,192,425 17,569,803

Due to banks 1,198,111 - - 1,198,111
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,925,914 139,128 - 4,065,042
Borrowings 2,324,127 - - 2,324,127
7,448,152 139,128 - 7,587,280
Kuwait ~ Modle Fst - yga Total
KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2015

Cash and bank balances 409,468 - - 409,468
Term deposits 1,053,917 - - 1,053,917
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,420,963 - - 4,420,963
Available for sale investments - 10,879,632 1,192,425 12,072,057

5,884,348 10,879,632 1,192,425 17,956,405

Due fo banks 1,339,155 - - 1,339,155
Accounts payable and other liabilities 4,656,922 540,000 - 5,196,922
Borrowings 6,162,324 - - 6,162,324

12,158,401 540,000 - 12,698,401
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26.2
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factors affecting all instfruments, fraded in the market. The Group is exposed to equity price risk with
respect to its listed equity investments, which are primarily located in Kuwait, Jordan and USA. Equity
investments are classified either as investments carried at fair value through profit or loss or available
for sale investments.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group monitors its portfolio
and diversifies, where possible.

The equity price risk sensitivity is determined on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.
If equity prices had been 10% higher, the effect on the loss for the year and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December would have been as follows:

A positive number below indicates decrease in loss and increase in other comprehensive income
where the equity prices increase by 10%. All other variables are held constant.

Other comprehensive income

2016 2015
KD KD
Available for sale investments - 1,087,963
- 1,087,963

For a 10% decrease in the equity prices there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss

for the years and other comprehensive income and the amounts shown above would be negative.

There is no impact to the consolidated financial statement as of 31 December 2016, based on equity

price risk as the Group’s quoted shares are valued based on valuation as disclosed in the Note 25.4.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group credit policy and exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at
the reporting date, as summarized below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Cash and bank balances 3,526,738 409,468
Term deposits 994,030 1,053,917
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,253,355 4,420,963
Available for sale investments 8,795,680 12,072,057

17,569,803 17,956,405
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The Group’s activities expose it fo variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s board of directors setfs out policies for reducing each of the risks discussed below.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments.

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below.

26.1 Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of monetary financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operates in the Middle East and USA and is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from various foreign currency exposures, primarily with respect to US dollars. To mitigate the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored.

Generally, the Group distinguishes short-term foreign currency cash flows (due within fwelve months)
from longer-term cash flows.

The Group’s significant net exposure to foreign currency denominated monetary assets less monetary
liabilities at the reporting date, translated info Kuwaiti Dinars at the closing rates are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
Equivalent Equivalent
KD KD
US Dollars (1,531,291) (1,394,454)

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had strengthened against the foreign currencies by 5%, then this would have the
following impact on the loss for the year.

Loss for the year

2016 2015
KD KD
Us Dollars 76,565 69,723
Total loss 76,565 69,723

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had weakened against the foreign currencies by 5% then there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the loss for the year.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume and nature of
the fransactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Parent
Company’s exposure to the foreign currency risk.

b) Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or
the fair values of financial instfruments. The Group is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks.

c) Equity price risk

This is a risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to individual instrument or its issuer or
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31 December 2016

26.
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Valuation Significant Range of Relationship of
Description . unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
technique - - .
inputs inputs to fair value
Building on Yield method and Market ) . )
freehold land comparison approach Es’nmo’redl The higher the price per
: marker price for KD1,408 square meter, the higher
- Kuwait (rental  for land & cost less land (per sgm) the fair value
properties) depreciation for buildings persq
The higher the
Construction KD430 construction cost per
cost (per sgm) square meter, the higher
the fair value
Average The higher the rent per
monthly rent KD11 square meter, the higher
(per sgm) the fair value
) 7.08% The higher the yield rate,
Vield rate the higher the value
The higher the vacancy
Vacancy rate - rate the lower the fair
value
31 December 2015
Building on Vield method and Market ¢y e KD1,375  The higher the price per
freenold land comparison approach marker price for to square meter, the higher
- Kuwait (rental  for land & cost less P quare ’ 9
) - - land (per sgm) KD3,750 the fair value
properties) depreciation for buildings
. KD200 The hlghgr the
Constfruction to construction cost per
cost (per sgm) square meter, the higher
KD600 .
the fair value
Average The higher the rent per
monthly rent KD5 - KD8 square meter, the higher
(per sgm) the fair value
6.4% . .
) The higher the yield rate,
Vieldrate 6 6T°Z the higher the value

Vacancy rate

Risk management ohjectives and policies

The higher the vacancy
rate the lower the fair
value

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise due to banks, borrowings and accounts payable

and other liabilities. The Parent Company has various financial assets such as accounts receivable

and other assets, murabaha and wakala investments, bank balances, cash balances with portfolio

manager, term deposits and investment securities which arise directly from operations.
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31 December 2015

. Significant Range e .
Financial asset t\g:ltl:r?ih?:r; unobservable (weighted rsne:;:::’r:)rlnc:r:r ; fﬁ:;ﬁ'”ﬁ

q input average) P

Long term growth rate for .
Unquoted Shares DCF Method cash flows for subsequent 3% T.h e higher the growth rate,
higher the fair value.

years
WACC 13.9% The higher the WACC, the

lower the fair value

The higher the discount for
15% lack of marketability the lower
the fair value

Discount for lack of
marketability

The impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income would be immaterial if the relevant risk
variable used to fair value the level 3 investments were changed by 5%.

Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market
participants would take info account these premiums and discounts when pricing the investments.

In case of AFS assets, the impairment charge in the profit or loss would depend on whether the
decline is significant or prolonged. An increase in the fair value would only impact equity (through
OCI) and, would not have an effect on profit or loss.

25.5 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value
on a recurring basis at 31 December 2016:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
Investment properties
-Buildings in Kuwait - - 1,838,000 1,838,000
- - 1,838,000 1,838,000

The above building represents rental property on freehold land categorized as “Investment Land”
in Kuwait. The fair value of the investment property has been determined based on valuations
obtained from two independent valuators, who are specialised in valuing these types of investment
properties. The significant inpufs and assumptions are developed in close consultation with
management. One of these valuator is a local bank (for local investment properties) who has valued
the investment properties using primarily two methods, one of which is the Yield Method and other
being a combination of the market comparison approach for the land and cost minus depreciation
approach for the buildings. The other valuator w ho is a local reputable valuator has also valued
the investment properties primarily by using a combination of the methods noted above. When the
market comparison approach is used adjustments have been incorporated for factors specific to the
land in question, including plot size, location and current use. For the valuation purpose, the Group
has selected the lower value of the two valuations. Further information regarding the level 3 fair value
measurements is set out in the table below:
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The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are as follows:

Financial instruments in level 1 & 3

a) Quoted shares

Quoted shares represent all listed equity securities which are publicly traded in stock exchanges.
Where quoted prices in an active market are available, the fair value of such investments have been

determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date (Level 1) and if the market
for a investment is not active, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation fechniques.

Financial instruments in level 3
b) Unquoted shares

These represent holdings in foreign unlisted securities which are measured at fair value. The fair values
have been determined based on valuation techniques.

Level 3 Fair value measurements

The Group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation fechniques
inputs that are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within this level can
be reconciled from beginning tfo ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Opening balance 1,192,425 1,192,425
Change in fair value 857,863 -
Transferred from level 1 to level 3 6,745,392 -
Closing balance 8,795,680 1,192,425

The following table provides information about the sensitivity of the fair values measurement to
changes in the most significant unobservable inputs:

31 December 2016

. Significant Range . .
. . Valuation . Sensitivity of the fair value
Financial asset - unobservable (weighted .
technique input average) measurement to the input
Long term growth rate for )
Unguoted Shares DCF Method cash flows for subsequent 3% The higher Th.e growth rate,
higher the fair value.
years
WACC 13.9% The higher the WACC, the

lower the fair value

The higher the discount for
15% lack of marketability the
lower the fair value

Discount for lack of
marketability
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25.3 Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the
observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

This hierarchy Group’s financial assets and liabilities info three levels based on the significance of
inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e unobservable
inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

25.4 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the statement of
consolidated financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Balance
Note KD KD KD KD

Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments

- Quoted shares a - - 7,603,255 7,603,255

- Unguoted shares b - - 1,192,425 1,192,425

Total assets - - 8,795,680 8,795,680

31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Balance
Note KD KD KD KD

Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments

- Quoted shares a 10,879,632 - - 10,879,632
- Unquoted shares b - - 1,192,425 1,192,425
Total assets 10,879,632 - 1,192,425 12,072,057

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair values, are unchanged
compared to the previous year, except for certain quoted available for sale investments that have
been fair valued based on valuation techniques as the Group’s management believes that such
valuations are more representative of the fair values of such investments based on the information
available to the management. Accordingly available for sale investments with a carrying value of
KD7,603,255 as atf reporting date have been transferred from level 1 to 3 during 2016 respectively.

Fair value measurements

The Group’s finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes,
including Level 3 fair values, in consultation with third party valuation specialists for complex valuations,
where required. Valuation techniques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument,
with the overall objective of maximising the use of market-based information.
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Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 2016 31 Dec.2015

KD KD

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits & Directors remuneration 265,300 405,096

25. Summary of financial assets and liahilities by category and fair value
measurement

25.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position may also be categorized as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Receivables(at amortised cost):
e Cash and bank balances 3,526,738 409,468
e Term deposits 994,030 1,063,917
¢ Accounts receivable and other assets 4,253,355 4,420,963
8,774,123 5,884,348
Available for sale investments — at fair value 8,795,680 12,072,057
8,795,680 12,072,057
17,569,803 17,956,405
Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost):
¢ Due to banks 1,198,111 1,339,155
e Accounts payable and other liabilities 4,065,042 5,196,922
* Borrowings 2,324,127 6,162,324
Total financial liabilities 7,587,280 12,698,401

25.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Group measures
financial instruments, such as Investments at fair value though profit or loss and available for sale
investments at fair value and measurement details are disclosed in note 25.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. In the opinion of the Group’s management, the carrying amounts of all other
financial assets and liabilities which are at amortised costs is considered a reasonable approximation
of their fair values.

The Group also measures certain non-financial assets, such as investment properties at fair value at
each annual reporting date and the measurement details are disclosed in note 25.5.
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23. Borrowings

Effective profit

rate (0.0.%) Security
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 2016 2015
KD KD

Long term
ljara Financing - KD (a) 4.5% 4.5% Secured 1,200,793 5,485,286
Tawarrug payables (o) 420,245 -
Less: Due within one year (304,500) (861,285)

1,316,538 4,624,001
Short term
Murabaha and Tawarrug payables - KD (c) - - 703,089 677,038
ljara Financing due within one year - KD 4.5% 4.5% Secured 304,500 861,285

1,007,589 1,538,323
2,324,127 6,162,324

a) The Group entered into rent-to-own confract with a local Islamic bank to purchase and develop
investment properties (note 13).The loan is due for repayment in quarterly instalments commencing
from 31 March 2015 and ending on 1 January 2021.The facility carries an effective profit rate of 3%
above Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate.

b) The Group enfered info rent-to-own contract with a local Islamic bank o purchase inventory. The
loan is due for repayment in monthly instalments commencing from 31 October 2016 and ending
on 31 May 2019.The facility carried an effective profit rate of 2.5% (2015: 2.5%) above Central Bank
of Kuwait discount rate. The portion due within one year is shown under due to banks and Tawaruq
payables.

¢) The short term Murabaha payable and Tawarug payables are granted to the Company from local
banks to finance the Company’s activities. These facilities mature within 6 months and carry an
effective interest rate of 2.5% (2015: 2.5%) above the discount rate of the Central Bank of Kuwait.

24. Related party transactions

Related parties represent the ultimate Parent Company, immediate Parent Company, associate
company, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
companies of which they are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant
influence or joint control. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Parent
Company’s management.

Significant related party transaction and balances included in the consolidated financial statement
are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Balances included Consolidated statement of financial position

Due from related parties (note 16)

- Due from immediate Parent Company - 18,000
- Due from other related parties - 4,928
Purchase of available for sale investments 609,458 -
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Holding of the above shares is not included in the Parent Company’s memorandum of incorporation
and Articles of association.

It was not possible fo disclose the market value of treasury shares as of 31 December 2016, as the
Parent Company is not listed.

21. Legal and voluntary reserves

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s articles of association, 10% of
the profit before conftribution to KFAS and Zakat provision is to be transferred to legal reserve. No
fransfer is required in a year in which losses are made or where accumulated losses exist.

Distribution of the legal reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend
of 5% of paid-up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the
distribution of a dividend of that amount.

In accordance with the Parent Company’s articles of association, a certain percentage of the profit
for the year, if any, is to be fransferred to the voluntary reserve at the discretfion of the board of
directors which is to be approved at the general assembly. No transfer is required in a year in which
losses are made or where accumulated losses exist.

22. Accounts payable and other liahilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Payable on acquisition of intangible assets 139,128 540,000
Payable on acquisition of subsidiary * 1,504,655 1,500,000
Payable to shareholders on capital reduction ** 871,605 896,047
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,549,654 2,260,875

4,065,042 5,196,922

* The payable on, acquisition of the subsidiary was due in instalments and the Group’s management
is presently in discussions with the parties concerned to re-negotiate payables on acquisition of
subsidiary disputing the validity of the due amount. There is a legal case filed by the concerned
parties against the Group and the Group’s management also has filed a case against the concern
parties.

** This represents the remaining amount due to shareholders consequent to the capital reduction
which occurred during the year 2011 as they have not collected their cheques as of the reporting
date.
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18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement are made up as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Cash and bank balances 3,526,738 409,468
Term deposits 994,030 1,053,917
Due to banks (1,198,111) (1,339,155)

3,322,657 124,230
Less: Blocked balances - (118,751)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 3,322,657 5,479

Due to banks represents overdraft balances which have been granted to a local subsidiary by local
banks in order to finance the subsidiary working capital requirements and they carry floating market
rates.

Cash and bank balance includes saving accounts with a local Islamic bank amounting to KD240,740
(2015: KD95,620) which earns profit.

The term deposits are placed with local banks and carry rates at 1.75% to 2.25% per annum.

19. Share capital

31 Dec. 2016 31 Dec.2015

No of No of

Shares KD Shares KD
Authorised, issued and paid up share
capital - Shares of 100 Fils each - in cash 335,000,000 33,500,000 335,000,000 33,500,000

20. Treasury shares
The Group holds freasury shares as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015

Number of shares 11,390,000 11,390,000
Percentage of issued shares 3.4% 3.4%
Cost (KD) 943,457 943,457

As the above represents the shares of the Parent Company which arose as a result of consolidation
of the subsidiary, National Information Technology for Computer Services and Consultancy - KSC
(Closed) (2015: Plexus Information Systems & Computers - KSC (Closed)), the Parent Company does
not have sufficient reserves equivalent to the cost of treasury shares. The shares have been acquired
by the subsidiary, (Plexus Information Systems & Computers - KSC (Closed) during the year 2008 and
was transferred during the year by Plexus Information Systems & Computers - KSC (Closed) to the
subsidiary National Information Technology for Computer Services and Consultancy - KSC (Closed)).
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17.

46

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Neither past due nor impaired - 924,724
Past due but not impaired

- less than 3 months 1,920,808 1,241,920

-3 -6 months 648,968 544,607
Past due and partially impaired

- over 6 months 383,724 510,156
Total trade receivables 2,953,500 3,221,407

Trade receivables that are less than six months past due are not considered impaired since they
relate to customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

Murabaha and Wakala investments

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
With a local Islamic financial institution - (through the parent company) 4,784,847 4,784,847
Less: Provision for impairment (4,784,847) (4,784,847)

No profit was recognised on impaired Murabaha investment during the current year (2015: Nil).

Murabaha investment with a local Islamic financial institution represents KD4,784,847 (2015;
KD4,784,847) cash placed with the immediate parent company who has in turn made a placement
on behalf of the parent company in alocal islamic investment company and the placement matured
in November 2008. The ultimate investee company has defaulted on settlement of this balance on
the maturity date and accordingly the immediate Parent Company was unable to return the money
to the parent company. During previous years, the immediate parent company has filed a case
against the local islamic financial institution to recover the amount due. Full provision has been made
against this investment in the previous years.

During the year 2012 the immediate parent company has received debt acknowledgment (official
repayment undertaking) from the local Islamic institution, as part of the Islamic institutions debt
reschedule plan. According to the plan the total amount is due in 5 instalments from June 2014 to
June 2017.

The amount which was due to be settled by the Islamic financial institution during the previous and
current year, as per the official repayment plan, has not been settled as yet.The Group’s management
will reverse the provision made in the previous years’ only when the funds are received from the local
Islamic financial institution through the immediate parent company.

During the year 2013 the Group received an amount of KD292,116 (including profit of KD76,963) from
the above impaired murabaha investment from the immediate parent company, and recorded this
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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During the previous year, the Group recognized an impairment of KD389, 136 for the above investment
associate. Further the Group has filed a legal case against the main partner and director of the
company. However the legal case is still at the first degree of the commercial court.

15. Available for sale investments

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Foreign investments
- Quoted shares 7,603,255 10,879,632
- Unguoted shares 1,192,425 1,192,425
8,795,680 12,072,057

a) The quoted shares represent investments in a Company in the Telecom sector, held through a
special purposes vehicle incorporated solely to hold these shares. During the year, the Group
recognized an impairment loss of KD2,025,786 (2015: KD Nil) for foreign quoted shares, as the
market value of these shares declined significantly below their cost.

b) At 31 December 2016 the unguoted shares and funds are held within portfolios managed by the
immediate parent company (2015: unquoted shares and funds) and these investments are in the
technology sector.

16. Accounts receivable and other assets

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Trade receivable:
- on sale of goods and services 1,323,897 1,924,057
- on consultancy contracts and projects* 1,982,262 1,909,921
Provision for doubtful debts (352,659) (612,571)

2,953,500 3,221,407
Advance payment to acquire investments** 6,797 214,797
Accrued Income 345,323 52,603
Due from immediate parent company - 18,000
Due from related parties - 4,928
Ofther assets 947,735 909,228

4,253,355 4,420,963

* This mainly represents receivable related to consultancy contfracts and projects which are mainly
related to the Government.

** During current year the Parent Company recognised an impairment of KD220,821 against advance
payment to acquire investments.

As at 31 December the aging analysis of frade receivables is as follows:
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Building FU"AI"e Ond Moend” Motor Clg'g:g;‘r’g;k Total
equipment  vehicles

31 December 2015
Cost
At beginning of the year 261,517 431,421 239,399 62,243 2,222,000 3,216,580
Additions - 7,978 209,220 - 58,290 275,488
g?org;erﬂgf fo investment : . . ~ (2280,290) (2,280,290)
At end of the year 261,517 439,399 448,619 62,243 - 1,211,778
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of the year - 345,106 221,432 51,459 - 617,997
Charge for the year 52,303 35,328 69,699 7,630 - 164,960
At end of the year 52,303 380,434 291,131 59,089 - 782,957
Net book value
At end of the year 209,214 58,965 157,488 3,154 - 428,821

13. Investment properties

The movement for investment properties is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Balance as of 1 January 9,698,000 7,835,484
Transfer from capital work in progress - 2,280,290
Additions during the year - 511,082
Disposals (7,778,000) -
Changes in fair value (82,000) (928,856)
Balance as of 31 December 1,838,000 9,698,000

During the year one of the subsidiaries of the group has disposed one of ifs investment properties
carried at KD7,778,000 for consideration of KD7,079,792 resulting in a loss of KD698,208.

At 31 December 2016, the group revalued its property based on independent valuations (refer note
25 for further details relating to fair values).

The above properties are subject to ljara financing facilities (secured) (refer note 23).
14. Investment in associate

During 2014, the Parent Company acquired 25% equity interest of Knockbook FZ LLC, a company
engaged in publishing, new media and media support services, media and marketing services and
registered in Fujairah, United Arab Emirates, for a consideration of KD375,000. The associate was
accounted using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December
2014, based on management account of the associate as of that date.
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31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Cost

At the beginning of the year 3,630,900 8,325,996
Reduction in the cost due to re-negotiations of terms - (2,684,655)
Impairment in value during the year - (2.010,441)
Balance atf the end of the year 3,630,900 3,630,900
Accumulated amortization

Af the beginning of the year (62,803) (40,614)
Charge for the year (251,213) (22,189)
At the end of the year (314,016) (62,803)
Net book value at the end of the year 3,316,884 3,568,097
Total goodwill and intangible assets 5,328,700 5,612,013

During the previous year the subsidiary re-negotiated the financial and other terms of its use and,
accordingly, as per the new contractual terms, ifs carrying value and that of the related liability has
reduced by KD2,684,655. Consequently, based on the information available, the Group’s management
has recognised an impairment of KD2,010,441 which includes, net cancellation charges of KD456,239
related to the previous contract.

12. Property and equipment

Machinery

31 December 2016 KD KD KD KD KD KD
Cost

At beginning of the year 261,517 439,399 448,619 62,243 - 1,211,778
Additions - 37,221 684 13,916 - 51,821
Disposall - (70,253) - - - (70,253)
At end of the year 261,517 406,367 449,303 76,159 - 1,193,346
Accumulated depreciation

At beginning of the year 52,303 380,434 291,131 59,089 - 782,957
Charge for the year 26,152 29,278 84,657 3,810 - 143,897
Related to disposal - (57,329) - - - (57,329)
At end of the year 78,455 352,383 375,788 62,899 - 869,525
Net book value

At end of the year 183,062 53,984 73,515 13,260 - 323,821
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11. Goodwill and Intangible assets

11.1 Goodwill

The movement in Goodwill is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
At the beginning of the year 2,043,916 2,081,774
Impairment - (24,877)
Adjustments (32,100) (12,981)
At the end of the year 2,011,816 2,043,916

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the Group’s inferest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries. Goodwill has been allocated to
the IT service business of the Group as that is the cash generatfing unit (CGU) which is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. It is also the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for impairment purposes.

Impairment testing

The Group defermines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which these items are allocated.The recoverable
amount is determined based on higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less cost to sell.

Management used the following approach fo determine values to be assigned to the following key
assumptions in the value in use calculations

Key assumption Basis used to determine value fo be assigned to key assumption

Growth rate Anticipated average growth rate of 3% (2015: 5%) per annum. Value assigned reflects
past experience and changes in economic environment.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of
3% (2015: 3%).This growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate of the
market in which the CGU operates.

Discount rate Discount rates of 17.2% (2015: 16.9%). Discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGU.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis by varying these input factors by a reasonably possible
margin and assessing whether the change in input factors result in any of the goodwill allocated
to appropriate cash generating units being impaired. Based on the above analysis, there are no
indications that goodwill included in any of the cash generating units is impaired.

11.2 Intangible assets — Indefeasible right of use (IRU)

Intfangible asset comprises of indefeasible right of use to a telecommunication asset arising from a
subsidiary acquired during 2014 and the movement is as follows:
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Year ended Year ended 31
31 Dec. 2016 Dec.2015
KD KD
Staff costs 923,095 1,532,428
Consultancy and legal fees 86,333 237,198
Office rent 119,593 133,089
Impairment in value of inventories 160,000 27,757
Depreciation and amortization 86,934 200,130
Others 414,907 516,218
1,790,862 2,646,820
Net loss on financial assets
Net loss on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows;
Year ended Year ended 31
31 Dec. 2016 Dec.2015
KD KD
Receivables:
- Saving accounts and term deposits 2,151 1,195
- Receivable and other assets - (impairment in value) (380,978) (656,364)
Available for sale investments:
- recognised directly in other comprehensive income (1,090,239) 1,947,625
- |recyclec! from other comprehensive income to statement of profit or
0ss:
e On impairment (2,025,786) -
- recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss 195,744 518,271
(3,299,108) 1,810,727
Distributed as follows:
Net loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (2,208,869) (136,898)
lc\)lTer:r e(:(;sg)riwicr'ghfr%i/%qﬁig r|Tr:econsolldo’red statement of profit or loss and (1,090.239) 1,947,625
(3,299,108) 1,810,727
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Summarised financial information for the above subsidiaries, before infra group eliminations, is set out

below:
ITP CSS
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 2016 2015
KD KD KD KD
Non-current assets 4,338,136 11,866,650 3,810,038 4,061,250
Current assets 4,409,783 3,631,515 358,661 169,391
Total assets 8,747,919 15,498,165 4,168,699 4,230,641
Non-current liabilities 1,632,109 5,719,867 903 -
Current liabilities 3,178,611 4,648,016 1,963,339 2,372,918
Total liabilities 4,810,720 10,367,883 1,964,242 2,372,918
E:qui’ry aftributable to owners of the Parent 3,211,023 4,415,520 1,519,937 1.114.634
ompany

Non-controlling interests (including non-controlling

interest of the sub subsidiary) 726,176 714,762 684,520 743,089
Revenue 9,809,940 10,093,168 1,152,294 657,811
(Loss)/profit for the year (1,209,497) (627,976) 346,734 225,096
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,209,497) (627,976) 346,734 225,096
- atftributable to owners of the Parent Company  (1,230,228) (641,626) 208,040 135,058
- aftributable to NCI 20,731 13,650 138,694 90,038
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities  (2,586,656) 712,328 183,214 (91,130)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 7,043,635 (737,440) - -
Net cash flow used in financing activities (3,920,763) (622,195) - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 536,216 (647,307) 183,214 (91,130)

8. Revenue from sales and services and cost of sales and services

Year ended Year ended 31
31 Dec. 2016 Dec.2015
KD KD
Revenue from:
Sale of goods 4,012,927 3,896,658
Project and Contract sales 4,078,168 5,667,195
Consultancy and other services 4,311,785 4,031,600
12,402,880 13,595,453

Cost of sales & services:

Total cost of sales & services include staff costs of KD5,901,791 (2015: KD5,339,863).
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this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant,
but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according o the
inventory tfype and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, faking info account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date.The future realisation of these inventories may be affected
by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. For the
year ended 31 December 2016 an impairment loss of KD160,000 (2015: KD27,752) is recognized for
inventories.

7. Subsidiary companies

7.1 Details of the Group’s consolidated subsidiaries at the end of year are as follows:

Subsidiary Percentage ownership  Principal activity

2016 2015

IT Partners for Information Technology KSCC

(Kuwait) 89% 89% Information Technology
E’(I:eléLsJ(se (Ijn)formo’rlon Systems & Computers - KSC 999 99% Information Technology
Digital Alliances for Marketing and o . .
Advertisement - KSC (Closed) 99% 99% Media and advertisement
Cable Sat Satellite Service Company - WLL 60% 60% Renting and selling of IRU

National Information Technology for Computer
Services and Consultancy - KSC (Closed)

Information technology and

0, 10,
100% 100% related activities

7.2  Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

The Group includes the following subsidiaries, with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of

ownership interests  Profit /(loss)allocated Accumulated NCI

and voting rights held to NCI
Name by the NCI
31 Dec. 31Dec. 31Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
KD KD KD KD

IT Partners for Information

Technology KSCC(ITP) 1% 1% 20,731 13,650 726,170 714,762
Cable Sat Satellite Service o o

Company - W.LL(CSS) 40% 40% 138,694  (107,223) 684,521 545,827
Individually immaterial

subsidiaries with non- controlling (743) (9,344) (7,888) (7,145)

interests

158,682 (102,917) 1,402,803 1,253,444

39



6.2.3

6.24

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

38

Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed) and Subsidiaries - Annual Report 2016

Impairment of non-financial assers (infangible assers)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication or objective evidence of impairment or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required. If any such indication or evidence exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment loss recognised for intangible assets amounted to KD
Nil (2015: KD2,035,318) (see note 11).

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management reviews periodically items classified as receivables (including murabaha
and wakala investments) to assess whether a provision for impairment should be recorded in the
statement of income. In particular, considerable judgement by management is required in the
estimation of amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required.
Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees
of judgement and uncertainty. In 2016 the Group has recognised impairment losses on receivables
of KD380,978 (2015: KD656,364).

Impairment of associartes

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date
based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. For the year ended 31 December 2016 an impairment loss of
KD Nil (2015: KD389,1306) is recognized for investment in associate.

Revaluation of investment propertfies

The Group carries ifs investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group engages independent valuation specialists
to determine fair values use valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These estimated fair
values of investment properties may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length tfransaction at the reporting date.

Fair value of financial insfruments

Management apply valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
where active market quotes are not available. This requires management to develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use
in pricing the instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate.
Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Impairment of invenfories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old
or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts
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6.1.2 Classification of real esfate
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading,
property & equipment or investment property. Such judgement at acquisition determines whether
these properties are subsequently measured at cost less depreciation and impairment, cost or net
realisable value whichever is lower or fair value and if the changes in fair value of these properties are
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

The Group classifies property as property and equipment if it is acquired with the intfention of owner
occupation or being developed for owner occupation.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for
capital appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

6.1.3 Confrol assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment
of relevant activities and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable
judgement.

6.2 Estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition
and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be
substantially different.

6.2.1 Impairment of available for sale equily invesimenis

The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted
equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities. For the year ended
31 December 2016 the Group has recognised impairment losses on available for sale investments
amounting of KD2,025,786 (2015: Nil)

6.2.2 Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generatfing unit and also to choose a suitable discount rafe in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Accumulated losses brought forward can be deducted from the adjusted profit for the year when
calculating the KFAS contribution for the year, and accordingly there is no liability tfowards KFAS for
2015 and 2016.

5.19.2 Zakart

5.20

6.1

6.1.1
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Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministry of
Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 Decemlber 2007.

Under the Zakat regulations no carry forward of losses to the future years or any carry back to prior
years is permitted.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and bank balances, short-term deposits and short term highly liquid investments maturing within
three months from the date of inception less due to banks and blocked bank balances.

Significant management judgments and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
significant judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Classification of financial insfruments

Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention
at acquisition. Such judgement determines whether it is subsequently measured at cost, amortised
cost or at fair value and if the changes in fair value of instruments are reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group classifies financial assets as held for frading if they are acquired primarily for the purpose
of short term profit making.

Designation of financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss depends on how management
monitors the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for tfrading
but have readily available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or
loss in the management accounts, they are designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification of assets as receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the Group is unable to
tfrade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable
payments the financial asset is classified as receivables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.
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Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required o setftle the present obligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in sefflement is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benéefits is remote.

5.17 Foreign currency translation

b.17.1 Functional and presenftation currency

The financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (KD) which is also the functional
currency of the Group.

5.17.2 Foreign currency fransactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of
monetary items denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical
cost (franslated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items
measured af fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value
was determined. Translation difference on non-monetary asset classified as, “fair value through profit
or loss” is reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and “available for sale” are reported as part of the cumulative change in fair value reserve within
other comprehensive income.

5.18 End of service indemnity

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefitsis based
upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum
service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts. The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded,
represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of fermination on the reporting date.

With respect fo its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution
for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are
limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

5.19 Taxation

5.19.1 Kuwait Foundation for the Aadvancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group in accordance with the
modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors’ resolution, which states that
transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
confribution.
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5.13.5 Offseffing of financial insfruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intenfion to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

5. 13.6 Fair value of financial insfruments

5.14

5.15

5.16
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The fair value of financial instruments that are fraded in active markets at each reporting date is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not fraded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market fransactions;
reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted
cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in Note 25.4.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Cumulative change in fair value reserve comprises gains and losses relating to available for sale
financial assets.

Accumulated losses include all current year loss and prior period profit/losses. All fransactions with
owners of the Group are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the
dividends have been approved in a general assembly meeting.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been re-acquired by
the Group and not yet reissued or cancelled. The freasury shares are accounted for using the cost
method. Under this method, the weighted average cost of the shares re-acquired is charged to a
contra account in equity.

When the freasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, (the “gain
on sale of freasury shares reserve”), which is not distrioutable. Any realised losses are charged o the
same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged
to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. No cash dividends are
paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend shares increases the numiber of treasury shares
proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury
shares.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liahilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group
and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
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Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for financial
assets that are debt securities which are recognised in profit or loss only if the reversal can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

5.13.3 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilifies

The Group’s financial liabilities are represented by Due to banks, borrowings and accounts payable
other liabilities. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

The Group classifies all its financial liabilities as “financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL).

¢ Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

These are stated af amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The Group categorises
financial liabilities other than at FVTPL into the following categories:

Borrowings

All borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective profit rate method amortisation process.

jara financing

liara finance payable ending with ownership is an Islamic financing arrangement through which a
financial institution provides finance to purchase an asset by way of renting the asset ending with
transferring its ownership. This ijara finance payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net
of deferred finance cost. Deferred finance costs are expensed on a time apporfionment basis faking
info account the borrowing rate attributable and the balance outstanding.

Murabaha finance payables

Murabaha finance payables represent amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets
purchased under murabaha arrangements. Murabaha finance payables are stated at the gross
amount of the payable, net of deferred finance cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a
time apportionment basis taking info account the borrowing rate attributable and the balance
outstanding.

Accounts payable and other financial liabilifies

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for services received, whether billed
by the service provider or not, and classified under other payables. Financial liabilities other than at
FVTPL which do not fall under the above are classified as “Other financial liabilities”.

5. 13.4 Amorfised cost of financial insfruments

Thisis computed using the effective interest method less any allowance forimpairment. The calculation
takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes fransaction costs and fees
that are an integral part of the effective profit rate.
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effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when
other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Receivables that
are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in Groups, which are
determined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk
characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based on recent historical counterparty default
rates for each identified Group.

The Group categorises receivables into following categories:

Bank balances, cash balances with portfolio managers and Term deposits

Bank balances comprise demand deposits. Cash balances with portfolio managers represent
money held by the Group’s investment managers which are held for future investments or which can
be withdrawn by the Group if required by notifying the respective manger. Terms deposits represents
deposits placed with financial institutions with a maturity of up to one year.

Accounts receivables and other assets

Amounts due from fransactions with immediate parent company/other related parties and cash
advances to immediate parent company/other related parties are included under due from
immediate parent company/other related parties within accounts receivable. Receivables are
stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate for
doubftful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off as incurred.

Receivables which are not categorised under any of the above are classified as “other assets”

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category or
do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment
losses, if any. Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and reported
within the fair value reserve within equity, except for impairment losses, and foreign exchange
differences on monetary assets, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from the equity reserve to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification adjustment
within other comprehensive income.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset available for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of
equity investments classified as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its cost. 'Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged’ against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described
below.

All'regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e.the date
that the entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of Group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:

e rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

* the Group has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass through” arrangement and either.

a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

b) the Group has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset
but has tfransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fromm an asset or has entered into a
pass- through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group confinues to recognise the fransferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is tfreated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

b.13.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assefs

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified info the following
categories upon initial recognition:

* receivables

* available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.
All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify
whetherthere is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a Group of financial assetsisimpaired.

Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which
are described below.

Allincome and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented

under separate headings in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

¢ Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the
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Investment properties are de-recognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property,
plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

Forimpairment assessment purposes, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units fo which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s
management as equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually.
All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs o sell
and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash
flows from the asset or each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are
directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects
of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for
each asset or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles,
such as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets
in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for
indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge
is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

Financial instruments

5.13.1 Recognifion, inifial measurement and derecognitfion

30

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
fransactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured
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5.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value and the costis determined according
to the weighted average method.

5.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost,
including any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary
for it o be capable of operating in the manner infended by the Group’s management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured using the cost model, cost less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis
to write down the cost less estimated residual value of property, plant and equipment. The useful
life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from items of
property, plant and equipment. The following useful lives are applied:

Buildings 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 2-5years
Machinery and equipment 2 -5 years
Motor vehicles 2-5years

Capital work-in progress is stated at cost. Following completion, capital work-in progress is tfransferred
info relevant class of property, plant and equipment.

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but af least
annually.

The carrying amount of property, plant & equipment is reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss being the difference between the carrying
value and the assetfs recoverable amount. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

5.11 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are
accounted for using the fair value model.

Investment properties are inifially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently all
investment properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by
independent real estate valuers and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Changes in fair value are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Recognifion of confract revenues and cosfs

When the outcome can be assessed reliably, contract revenue and associated costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. Revenue is

measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity.

When the Group cannot measure the outcome of a contract reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs that have been incurred and are recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised in the period in which they are incurred.

In either situation, when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A project’s stage of completion is assessed by management based on the development of stages
of the activities to be carried out under the contract and other available relevant information at
the reporting date. The maximum amount of revenue recognised for each stage is determined by
estimating relative contract fair values of each confract phase, i.e. by comparing the company’s
overall confract revenue with the expected profit for each corresponding stage. Progress and related
contract revenue in-between stages is determined by comparing costs incurred to date with the
total estimated costs estimated for that particular stage (a procedure sometimes referred to as the
cost-to-cost method).

Income from Murabaha and Wakala investmenis

Income from Murabaha and Wakala investments are recognised on a time proportionate basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, is recognised at the fime the right
to receive payment is established.

Renfal income

Rental income is recognised on straight line basis over the term of lease. The Group earns rental
income from operating leases of its investment properties.

Loss from sale of investment propertfies

Profit or loss from sale of investment properties is recognised on completion of sale contract and after
fransferring the risk and rewards associated with the investments property to the purchaser and the
amount can be reliably measured.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of
their origin.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset
for its infended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred and reported in finance costs.



O] . TS g)ll_.a_'j‘)[_ljg_.l
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed) and Subsidiaries - Annual Report 2016 NOORTEL

attributable to the Group’s share in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the
amount recognised as investment in associates.

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or
decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate, adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the
Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on fransactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated fo the extent of the Group’s inferest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are
eliminated, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the statements of profit or loss. This is
the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after fax and non-
controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The difference in reporting dates of the associates and the Group is not more than three months.
Adjustments are made for the effects of significant fransactions or events that occur between that
date and the date of the Group’s financial statements. The associate’s accounting policies conform
to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines af
each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired.If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

5.6 Revenue

Revenue arises from the sale of goods, rendering of services, investing activities and real estate
activities. It is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable,
excluding sales taxes, rebates and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made. The following
specific recognition criteria should also be met before revenue is recognised;

5.6.1 Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership, generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

5.6.2 Revenue from service confracts

Income from service contracts is recognized in profit or loss evenly over the period of the contract.
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When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual tferms, economic
circumstances and pertfinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with 1AS 39 either in profit or loss or
as change to other comprehensives income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it
should not be remeasured until it is finally setfled within other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the
excess of the sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non
controlling interest in the acquiree and ¢) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest
in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of
identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain
purchase) is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. See note 5.2 for information on how goodwill is
initially determined. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to note 5.12

for a description of impairment festing procedures.

Intangible assets

Identifiable non-monetary assets acquired in as business combination and from which future benefits
are expected to flow are freated as intangible assets. Infangible assets comprise of Indefeasible
Rights of Use (IRU).

Infangible assets which have a finite life are amortized over their useful lives. For acquired network
businesses whose operations are governed by fixed term licenses, the amortisation period is
determined primarily by reference to the unexpired license period and the conditions for license
renewal.

IRU are the rights to use a portion of the capacity of a terrestrial or submarine transmission cable
granted for a fixed period. IRUs are recognised at cost as an asset when the Group has the specific
indefeasible right to use an identified portion of the underlying asset, generally optical fibres or
dedicated wave length bandwidth and the duration of the right is for the major part of the underlying
asset’s economic life. They are amortised on a straight line basis over the shorter of the expected
period of use and the life of the contract which ranges between 10 to 15 years.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which
are neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment
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All fransactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including
unredlised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses
on infra-Group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from a Group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiary
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are recognised from the date the Group gains
control, or until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary as applicable.

Non-conftrolling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or
loss and net assets that is not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income
or loss of subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on
their respective ownership inferests. Losses of subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests
even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary; it:

e Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
¢ Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

* Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

* Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

* Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

* Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive
income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group
has directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

5.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
tfransferred by the Group to obtain control of asubsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which
includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures
the non-conftrolling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
regardless of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements
prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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of examples of evidence that a change in use has occurred. The Board has also clarified that a
change in management's intent, by itself, does not provide sufficient evidence that a change in use
has occurred. Evidence of a change in use must be observable.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

) Amendments fo IFRS 12- Clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that its disclosure requirements
(except for those in IFRS 12. B17) apply to an entity’s interests irrespective of whether they are
classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale or as discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5. Amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017.

(i Amenaments fo IAS 28 - Clarifies that a qualifying entity is able to choose between applying the
equity method or measuring an investment in an associate or joint venture at fair value through
profit or loss, separately for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition of the associate
or joint venture. Amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after T January 2018.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretations looks at what exchange rate to use for franslation when payments are made or
received in advance of the related asset, expense or income. A diversity was observed in practice
in circumstances in which an entity recognises a non-monetary liability arising from advance
consideration. The diversity resulted from the fact that some entities were recognising revenue using
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt of the advance consideration while others were
using the spot exchange rate at the date that revenue was recognized. IFRIC 22 addresses this issue
by clarifying that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense orincome (or part of it) is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment
or receipt of advance consideration.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies and measurements bases adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are summarised below:

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the parent company and all of its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is fransferred to the Group and
they are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. All subsidiaries have a reporting date
of 31 December. The details of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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* Timing - whether revenue is required to be recognized over time or at a single point in time

* Variable pricing and credit risk - addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent
(e.g. performance-based) pricing, and infroducing an overall constraint on revenue

e Time value - when to adjust a contract price for a financing component
* Specific issues, including -

s non-cash consideration and asset exchanges

s contract costs

s rights of refurn and other customer options

s supplier repurchase options

s warranties

s principal versus agent

s licencing

s pbreakage

= non-refundable upfront fees, and

= consignment and bill-and-hold arrangements.

The Group’s management has yet to assess the impact of this standard on Group Consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 and three related Interpretations. Leases will be recorded on the statement
of financial position in the form of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

Management is yet to fully assess the impact of the Standard and therefore is unable to provide
quantified information. However, in order to determine the impact, management is in the process of:

e performing a full review of all agreements to assess whether any additional contracts will now
become a lease under IFRS 16’s new definition

* deciding which fransitional provision to adopft; either full retrospective application or partial
retrospective application (which means comparatives do not need to be restated). The partial
application method also provides optional relief from reassessing whether contracts in place are,
or contain, a lease, as well as other reliefs. Deciding which of these practical expedients to adopt is
important as they are one-off choices

e assessing their current disclosures for finance and operating leases as these are likely to form the
basis of the amounts to be capitalised and become right-of-use assets

» determining which optional accounting simplifications apply to their lease portfolio and if they are
going to use these exemptions

e assessing the additional disclosures that will be required.

IFRS 40 Investment Property - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 40 clarifies that transfers to, or from, investment property are required when,
and only when, there is a change in use of property supported by evidence. The amendments also
re-characterise the list of circumstances appearing in paragraph 57(a)-(d) as a non-exhaustive list
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IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, early
implementation is allowed.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The IASB published IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2014), representing the completion of its project to
replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The new standard infroduces
extensive changes to IAS 39’s guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets
and infroduces a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for the impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also
provides new guidance on the application of hedge accounting.

Management has started to assess the impact of IFRS 9 but is not yet in a position to provide quantified
information. At this stage the main areas of expected impact are as follows:

* the classification and measurement of the financial assets will need to be reviewed based on the
new criteria that considers the assets’ contractual cash flows and the business model in which they
are managed.

* an expected credit loss-based impairment will need to be recognised on the frade receivables and
investments in debt-type assets currently classified as available for sale and held-to-maturity, unless
classified as at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the new criteria.

e it will no longer be possible to measure equity investments at cost less impairment and all such
investments will instead be measured at fair value. Changes in fair value will be presented in profit
or loss unless an irrevocable designation is made to present them in other comprehensive income.

* if the fair value option continues to be elected for certain financial liabilities, fair value movements
will be presented in other comprehensive income 1o the extent those changes relate to own credit
risk.

Although earlier application of this standard is permitted, the Technical Committee of the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry of Kuwait decided on 30 December 2009, o postpone this early application
fill further notice.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 "Revenues”, IAS 11 "Construction Contract” and several revenue - related
Interpretations and provides a new control-based revenue recognition model using five-step
approach to all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:
¢ |dentify the contract with the customer
* |dentify the performance obligations in the contract
¢ Determine the fransaction price
¢ Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts

* Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The standard includes important guidance, such as

* Confracts involving the delivery of two or more goods or services - when to account separately
for the individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the
fransaction price, and when to combine contracts.



ot . iaries - ety Jg—
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed) and Subsidiaries - Annual Report 2016 NOORTEL

Effective for annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments 1 January 2017

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Invest

. ) , No stated date
or and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments

IFRS @ Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments 1 January 2018
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 1 January 2017 and 2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments

The Amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided to users of financial
statements about changes in an entity’s debt and related cash flows (and noncash changes)

The Amendments:

e require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities. An entity applies its judgement when determining the exact form and
content of the disclosures needed to safisfy this requirement

e suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary in order to satisfy the above
requirement, including:

s changesin liabilities arising from financing activities caused by changes in financing cash
flows, foreign exchange rates or fair values, or obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses

= a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities in the statement of financial position including those changes identified
immediately above.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the tfreatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to
its associate or joint venture, as follows:

* require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
conftribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

* require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e.
a gain or loss is recognised only 1o the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture.

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the fransaction, e.g. whether the sale or
contribution of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets
(resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

2]
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IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 ‘Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception - Amendments

The Amendments are aimed at clarifying the following aspects:

e Exempftion from preparing consolidared financial statements. The amendments confirm that the
exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements for an infermediate parent entity is
available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.

e A subsidiary providing services thart relafe ro the parent’s invesiment activifies. A subsidiary that
provides services related to the parent’s investment activities should not be consolidated if the
subsidiary itself is an investment entity.

*  Application of the equity method by a non-investment enfity investor to an investment entfity

investee. When applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment
entity investor in an investment entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the
associate or joint venture to its inferests in subsidiaries.

e Disclosures required. An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the
disclosures relatfing fo investment entities required by IFRS 12.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

) Amendments fo IFRS 5 - Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an
asset from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution
accounting is discontinued

(i Amendments fo IFRS 7- Additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset, and clarification on offsetting disclosures in condensed interim
financial statements

(i) Amendments fo IAS 19 - Clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the
discount rate for post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the
benefits to be paid

(iv) Amendments fo IAS 34 - Clarify the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the inferim report” and require a
cross-reference

IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the datfe of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not
yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning affer the effective date of the pronouncements.
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and
interpretations have been published but are not expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in
which the activity constitutes a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to apply all of
the business combinations accounting principles in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those principles
that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11. 1t also requires disclosure of the information required by IFRS
3 and other IFRSs for business combinations.

The amendments apply both to the inifial acquisition of an inferest in joint operation, and the
acquisition of an additional interest in a joint operation (in the latter case, previously held interests are
not remeasured). The amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of interests in joint operations.

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 1T make the following changes:

¢ Materiality: The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating
or by providing immaterial information, (2) materiality considerations apply fo the all parts of the
financial statements, and (3) even when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality
considerations do apply.

+ Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income: The
amendments (1) infroduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements
can be disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements and (2) clarify that an entity’s share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint
ventures should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or noft it will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

¢ Notes: The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify
that understandability and comparability should be considered when determining the order of the
notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph
114 of IAS 1. The IASB also removed guidance and examples with regard to the identification of
significant accounting policies that were perceived as being potentially unhelpful.

IAS 16 and 1AS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets address the

following matters:

* a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the
use of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment

* an amorfisation method that is based on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the
use of an intangible asset is generally inappropriate except for limited circumstances

* expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that was produced using an asset could
indicate the expectation of technological or commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in furn,
might reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements permit investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial
statements.

19
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thereto, as stipulated in article (6) thereto. The new Law will be effective refrospectively from 26
November 2012. The Executive Regulations of Law No. 1 of 2016 were issued on 12 July 2016.

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is Noor Complex, Building 29, Block - 13, Qibla,
Kuwait (PO Box 3311, Safat 13034, State of Kuwait).

The board of directors of the parent company approved these financial statements for issuance
on 14 August 2017. The general assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to
amend these financial statements after issuance.

The Group annual financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 31 October 2016.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention
modified to include the measurement at fair value of available for sale investments and investment
properties.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD).

The Company’s management decided to change the presentation of consolidated statement of
financial position o reflect the separate classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities,
and accordingly the previous year’s figures have been re-arranged to conform to the current year
presentation.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB”), and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASB.

Changes to accounting policies
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016 which have been adopted by the Group but did not have any significant impact on
the consolidated financial position or the results for the year. Information on these new standards
which are considered to be relevant to the Group is presented below:

Effective for annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning

IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Inferests in Joint Operations
-Amendments

IAS 1 "Disclosure Initiative - Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation - Amendments

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments 1 January 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception - Amendments

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Incorporation and activities

Noor Telecommunicatfion Company - KSC (Closed) (the “Parent Company”) was incorporated in
compliance with the Islamic Shariah as a Kuwait Closed Shareholding Company on 28 April 2007
under the Company Law. The Parent Company and subsidiaries are together referred to as “the
Group”.

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Noor Financial Investment Company - KPSC (the “Immediate
parent company”) which in turn is a subsidiary of National Industries Group Holding - KPSC (“Ultimate
Parent Company™).

The principal objectives of the Parent Company are as follows:

- Purchasing, supplying, installing, managing and maintaining telecommunication systems and
equipment and telecommunication services.

- Purchasing or renting communication lines and facilities necessary to provide the company’s
services by coordination without interference or conflict with the services provided by the
Government.

- Purchasing manufacturing privileges directly related to the company’s services from the industrial
companies or manufacturing same in Kuwait (after approval by the Public Authority of Industry
with regard to manufacturing activity).

- Includingormanaging otherservicesofsimilarnature andcomplementary tothe telecommunication
services for the purpose of developing these services or making them integral.

- Conducting fechnical researches related to the company’s activities for the purpose of improving
and developing the company’s services by cooperation with the competent authorities inside
and outside Kuwait.

- Purchasing all materials and machinery necessary forthe company’s objectives such as connecting
the automatic call service and maintaining these services by all possible recent methods.

- Providing the information transfer service by radio.
- Infernational telephone communication service through special cards.

- Marketing and renting out of electronic communication systems and internal communication
networks.

- Acquiring movables and real estate properties necessary to carry out its activities within the limits
permitted by the law.

- Utilizing surplus funds available with the company by investing same in financial portfolios managed
by specialized companies and bodies.

The Parent Company can perform all the activities mentioned above in or outside the State of Kuwait,
either directly or through an agent. The Parent Company has the right to participate and subscribe
in any way, with other firms which operate in the same field or those which would assist in achieving
its objectives in or outside Kuwait. Further, the company can establish, fund, purchase or acquire
inferests in companies performing similar activities.

The new Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 24 January 2016 and published in the Official
Gazette on 1 February 2016 in which they have cancelled Law No. 25 of 2012 and its amendments

17
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (2,567,652) (3,705,382
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 427,210 200,130
Income from saving accounts and term deposits (2,151) (1,195)
Change in fair value of investment properties 82,000 928,856
Loss on sale of investment in properties 698,208 -
Dividend income (195,744) (518,271)
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 2,025,786 -
Impairment in value of accounts receivables and other assets 380,978 656,364
Impairment in value of inventories 160,000 27,757
Impairment in value of investment in associate - 389,136
Impairment in value of intangible assets and goodwill - 2,035,318
Finance costs 219,657 200,201
Provision for end of service indemnity 139,736 158,069
1,368,028 370,983

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Investment aft fair value through profit or loss - 6,415
Accounts receivable and other assets (213,370) (931,058)
Inventory (68,627) (567,872)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (1,136,173) 203,038
Cash used in operations (50,142) (918,494)
End of service indemnity paid (87,689) (133,229)
Net cash used in operating activities (137,831) (1,051,723)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to available for sale investments (609,485) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment (38,897) (275,488)
Additions to investment properties - (611,082)
Proceeds from capital reduction of available for sale investments 764,807 -
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 7,079,792 -
Dividend income received 195,744 518,271
Income received from saving accounts and term deposits 2,151 1,195
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 7,394,112 (267,104)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease in blocked balances 118,751 304,230
Net change in borrowings (3,838,197) (421,994)
Finance costs paid (219,657) (200,2071)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,939,103) (317,965)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,317,178 (1,636,792)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,479 1,642,271
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18 3,322,657 5,479

The notes set out on pages 17 to 59 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

16
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31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2016 2015
KD KD
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 11 5,328,700 5,612,013
Property and equipment 12 323,821 428,821
Investment properties 13 1,838,000 9,698,000
Available for sale investments 15 8,795,680 12,072,057
Total non-current assets 16,286,201 27.810,891
Current assets
Inventory 688,664 780,037
Accounts receivable and other assets 16 4,253,355 4,420,963
Term deposits 18 994,030 1,063,917
Cash and bank balances 18 3,526,738 409,468
Total current assets 9,462,787 6,664,385
Total assets 25,748,988 34,475,276
Liabilities and equity
Equity
Share capital 19 33,500,000 33,500,000
Treasury shares 20 (943,457) (943,457)
Cumulative changes in fair value 857,863 1,948,102
Accumulated losses (17,113,246) (14,386,912)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 16,301,160 20,117,733
Non-controlling interests 1,402,803 1,253,444
Total equity 17,703,963 21,371,177
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long ferm borrowings 23 1,316,538 4,624,001
Provision for end of service indemnity 457,745 405,698
Total non-current liabilities 1,774,283 5,029,699
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 22 4,065,042 5,196,922
Short term borrowings 23 1,007,589 1,538,323
Due fo banks 18 1,198,111 1,339,155
Total current liabilities 6,270,742 8,074,400
Total liabilities 8,045,025 13,104,099
Total liabilities and equity 25,748,988 34,475,276

Faisal Al-Nassar
Chairman

The notes set out on pages 17 to 59 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Reyadh Edris
Vice Chairman

13



el Jg— . . . e
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed) and Subsidiaries - Annual Report 2016

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Loss for the year (2,567,652) (3,705,382)
Other comprehensive income:
[fems to be reclassified to profit or loss in sulbsequent periods:
Available for sale investments
- Net changes in fair value arising during the year (3,116,025) 1,947,625
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 2,025,786 -
Total other comprehensive income for the year (1,090,239) 1,947,625
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,657,891) (1,757,757)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent company (3,816,573) (1,654,840)
Non-controlling interests 158,682 (102,917)
(3,657,891) (1,757,757)

The notes set out on pages 17 to 59 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

12
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2016 2015
KD KD
Income
Revenue from sales & services 8 12,402,880 13,595,453
Cost of sales and services 8 (10,476,679) (11,363,242)
Gross profit 1,926,201 2,232,211
Change in fair value of investment properties 13 (82,000) (928,856)
Loss on sale of investment of properties 13 (698,208) -
Income from saving accounts and term deposits 2,151 1,195
Dividend income 195,744 518,271
Rental income 388,874 312,540
Other income 121,524 38,732
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (4,655) 48,364
1,849,631 2,222,457
Expenses and other charges
Finance costs 219,657 200,201
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 15 2,025,786 -
Impairment in value of accounts receivables and other assets 380,978 656,364
Impairment in value of investment in associate 14 - 389,136
Impairment in value of infangible assets and goodwiill 11 - 2,035,318
General, administrative and other expenses 9 1,790,862 2,646,820
4,417,283 5,927,839
Loss for the year (2,567,652) (3,705,382)
Atftributable fo:
Owners of the Parent Company (2,726,334) (3,602,465)
Non-controlling interests 158,682 (102,917)
(2,567,652) (3,705,382)

The notes set out on pages 17 to 59 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

11
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* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s board
of directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further
report that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit
and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies
Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum
of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the
Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporatfion and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred
during the year ended 31 December 2016 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial
position of the Parent Company except as noted in note 20.

Abdullatif M. Al-Aiban (CPA)
(Licence No. 94-A)
of Grant Thornton - Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Kuwait
14 August 2017

10
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Independent auditor’s report

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intfends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to confinue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed)

Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC
(Closed) ("Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Intfernational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this
auditor’s report is information included in the report of the Parent Company’s board of directors, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of my colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, and myself, | am pleased to present to you the annual
report of Noor Telecommunications Company for the year 2016.

The turmoil in the year 2016 was not less than the previous year on the economic and political scenes in the region, and its
adverse impact stroke businesses growth, stfock markets as well as government expenditure in the State of Kuwait. Where
the public expenditure shrinkage continued for new projects including communications and technology sectors, which in
fact withesses a continuing shrinkage in profit margin during previous periods.

However, Noor Telecommmunications Company confinued its endeavors for its business growth through its operating
subsidiaries.

In spite of the fact that the company did not recognize profit, the company recorded losses of KD 2,726,334 against
KD 3,602,465 in 2015, the company was able to decrease the loss by 24%. The main reason behind these losses are the
decrease of the fair value of the company’s investment in Jordan Telecommunications Company and the recognized loss
from selling of one of the investment properties due to the low prices of the real estate in general.

Positively, the general and administrative expenses decreased by 32% approximating KD 856 thousand and the cash and
banks increased by 761% as a result of selling of an investment property to amount approximately KD 3.5 million, and a
decrease of the totfal liabilities of the company by 39% to amount approximately KD 8 million against KD 13 million in 2015.

And to shed light on the financial statements for this year, the total sales amounted KD 12,402,880 against KD 13,595,453
in 2015. The total cost of sales amounted to KD 10,476,679 against KD 11,363,242 in 2015. The gross profit amounted to KD
1,926,201 against KD 2,232,211 in 2015. The total current assets amounted to KD 9,462,787 against KD 6,664,385 in 2015.The
fotal assets amounted fo KD 25,748,988 against KD 34,475,276 in 2015. The fotal current liabilities amounted to 6,270,742
against KD 8,074,400 in 2015. The shareholders equity amounted KD 17,703,963 against KD 21,371,177 in 2015.

And in alignment of the company’s frend followed this year, the company seeks to exit from the less profitable assets to
achieve balance in its future operations. And also, to distribute the excess of cash to its shareholders. The company will
continue also its support to its operating group companies and developing them by means of the best-experienced
personnel and concentrating its activities and projects on the government sector through its profit - making company in
this regard.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommmended to the shareholders’ general assembly not fo distribute profits for the
financial year ending 31 December 2016. And also, not to pay Board of Directors remuneration for their work during the
financial year ending 31 December 2016.

Also, the Board of Directors recommended the exira ordinary general assembly to reduce the company’s capital by
writing off the accumulated losses as of 31 December 2016 so that the company can distribute the excess of cash to
the shareholders by an amount of KD 2,250,000. This recommendation is subject to the approval of the official regulatory
authorities.

In conclusion, we extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our esteemed shareholders for the confidence they have
vested in us, praying Almighty Allah for our success and achievement of our goals.

Faisal Abdulaziz Al-Nassar
Chairman



faatt . RTINS e i )9 J
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSC (Closed) and Subsidiaries - Annual Report 2016

Board Members

Mr. Faisal Abdulaziz Al-Nassar Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mr. Reyad Salem Idriss Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dr. Fahad Sulaiman Al-Khaled Member of the Board of Directors and CEO
Mr. Abdulghani Mohammad Behbehani Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Mohammad Sabry Abdelradi Member of the Board of Directors
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His Highness His Highness
Sheikh Sabah Al-Ahmed Al-Jaber Al-Sabah Sheikh Nawaf Al-Ahmed Al-Jaber Al-Sabah
The Amir Of The State Of Kuwait The Crown Prince Of The State Of Kuwait
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